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MEETINGS - UPCOMING AND JUST PAST
At DVHRC’s October meeting, Lewie Newhard delivered the first of a series of talks on '20s home radios. His pre-
sentation was well received. Our next meeting is scheduled for Nov. 12. (BVHRC members planning to attend the
next NJARC meeting are reminded that it has been deferred to Nov. 15.)

TIME CAPSULE OPENED AT ATWATER KENT PLANT
Ludwell (Scoop) Sibley

On October 25, the General Services Administration hosted a ceremony at the one-time Atwater Kent Manufacturing
Co. factory at 5000 Wissahickon Ave. in Philadelphia. With the aid of members of the Kent family and AK radio enthu-
siasts, the 1928 time capsule from the building’s cornerstone was extracted and opened. Inside were Kent's speech
notes from the original dedication ceremony, the local newspapers of the day, and an AK 55 table-model radio.

The building, begun in 1928 and dedicated in May, 1929, is scheduled for teardown. The AK company used it until
liquidating in 1837. The Federal Government bought it in 1941 to establish the Army’s Philadelphia Signal Depot.
After dissolution of the Depot in 1949, other Government agencies used the building: the National Archives, the Trea-
sury Department, and the Veterans Administration. The VA - the final tenant - has moved to a new facility nearby. By
contrast, the original AK buildings in the adjacent block are registered historic properties and are being preserved.

The capsule-opening event was attended by members of the Kent family, notably A. Atwater Kent Ill of Newtown
Square and Peter Kent of Media, plus local dignitaries. Bill Overbeck, Jim Whartenby, and Bill Fizette - presidents re-
spectively of DVHRC, NJARC, and AWA - were present, with other area collector-historians. Introductory speakers
were Paul Chistolini, GSA regional administrator; Melvin Wilson, VA chaplain; Gerald Murphy, deputy mayor for labor
representing Mayor Rendell; Thomas Lastowska, VA regional director; A. Atwater Kent IIl, representing the family: and
Jeffrey Ray, collections curator of the AK Museum in Philadelphia. At unveiling time, Ralph Williams - DVHRC member

and widely published AK historian/collector - wielded a large : ' .

soldering iron to open the copper time capsule.

The opened capsule revealed A. Atwater Kent's dedication
speech, typed on index cards and marked-up for emphasis,
plus the five newspapers, in “remarkably good" condition. (For
nostalgia purposes, the papers were the Daily News, Evening
Bulletin, Inquirer, Public Ledger, and Record.) The AK 55 rad-
io, complete with instruction book, is in good shape externally.
Internally, it has some corrosion and spots of rust. The day the
Capsule was sealed is known to have been unusually damp, so
perhaps moisture in the newspapers got to the set over the
course of 67 years.

Appropriate for a *radio* event, this ceremony took place
under the eyes of ten video cameras, including those of the
four commercial network TV stations in town. It appeared on
the news programs of at least three of them. (One time-
pressed cameraman expressed impatience at 11:45 AM to get
the capsule open in time to go on the noon news!) Inside the
building, the GSA played a silent movie of the original

Hoisting the cornerstone from its resting place.



dedication ceremony, starring a confident-looking
A. Atwater Kent and his supporting cast.

After the ceremony, DVHRC presented A.
Atwater Kent Ill with a special engraved nametag
in commemoration of the event,

The structure was something of a marvel of plant
design at the time of its construction, using long-
span roof trusses giving an unusually great
distance (60 feet) between support pillars. The
sawtooth roof with north-facing windows gave
natural lighting and ventilation. As a mass-
production facility, the whole AK complex featured
some six miles of conveyor belts.

Visiting the building was a sort of homecoming
for DVHRCer Paul Bohlander, who had worked in
one of the early AK buildings nearby when Philco
occupied it.

The capsule contents are to go on display in the
new VA building, then to be received by the Atwat-
er Kent Museum - a fitting repository. The GSA's
handling of the decommissioning of this building
seems to have been a respectful and appropriate
treatment of a semi-historic but obsolete facility, It
is particularly appropriate that the central artifacts Ralph Williams (behind mike) tilts the AK 55 up for the
from it appear destined for preservation. cameras, under the proud eye of A, Atwater Kent Il {right).

A BACKGROUNDER: AK’'s EXPANDED FACTORY
Bill Overbeck

On November 2, 1928, Arthur Atwater Kent broke ground for a 16-'4 acre addition to his radio plant, located at 4700
Wissahickon Ave. in the Germantown section of Philadelphia. The building was rushed through to completion in six
months.

Dedication of the new facility started at noon on Tuesday, May 21 of the following year. Following an inspection tour
of the huge plant which brought total space occupied to more than 32 acres, ceremonies were held in which the lat-
est receiver produced at the moment was placed in a copper box. The lid was sealed up by Kent, then-Mayor
Mackey, and E. T. Stotesbury, after a copy of the day’s issue of each of the Philadelphia newspapers was included.
The plant was actually in production when the *1928* cornerstone was laid.

Mayor Mackey spoke at a luncheon preceding the dedication, accompanied by City Solicitor Augustus T. Ashton
and Recorder of Deeds James M. Hazlett. The mayor praised Philadelphia’s leadership in industry and cited Mr Kent
as a man of vision bringing great enterprise to the city.

Principal speaker was U. S. Senator Clarence C. Dill of Washington. He was known as *the father of radio legisla-
tion" from his Dill Bill (later, the Dill-White Radio Act of 1927) establishing the Federal Radio Commission. He cited the
United States as the only country where radio programs were *free" to the public, whereas other nations taxed their
radio listeners. "Congress is beginning to wake up," he said. ‘The individual members are beginning to study radio
because they want the people in their respective sections to get the best reception from radio programs . .. The
United States has six percent of the world’s population . . . and owns 70 percent of the world's radio sets, as well as
78 percent of the world's broadcasting stations.”

*Such men as A. Atwater Kent have made America the greatest industrial and commercial nation in the world. Only
a man with vision and daring would ever construct such as marvelous plant as this to build radio sets by so many
thousands. The world has always honored the man with a vision and the daring to make that vision a reality."

Kent offered his "feelings about the present and future of radio”: . .. “Presented to you in the form of this big new
factory. Great as the radio industry has been in the past, | feel that more confident than ever today that the greatest
development still lies in the future.”

"In order to succeed in the radio business, you must keep doing something new because radio itself produces a
new problem almost every day. You can't go stale in the radio business without going bankrupt, because the other
fellow will pass you.*

Others present at the ceremonies were Judge J. Warren Davis of the U. S. Circuit Court; John C. Jones, chief of the







